ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 25, 2009
3:24 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve John Coghil
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 68

"An Act meking sales of and offers to sell <certain energy
resources by a refiner at prices that are exorbitant or
excessive an unlawful act or practice under the Al aska Unfair
Trade Practices and Consuner Protection Act."

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 68

SHORT TI TLE: PRI CE GOUQ NG | NVOLVI NG ENERGY RESOURCES

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) PETERSEN, GARA, TUCK, CRUENBERG,
KAWASAKI

01/ 20/ 09 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H L&C, JUD, FIN

02/ 04/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 25/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PETE PETERSEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as a joint prime sponsor of HB
68.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 25, 2009



DAVI D DUNSMCORE, St af f

Representati ve Pete Petersen

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 68.

BOB VEI NSTEI'N, Mayor

City of Ketchikan

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

CAROLI NE PONELL, Owner

Mal | otts General Store, Inc.

Yakut at, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

LYNN WESTFALL, Senior Vice-President, External Affairs and Chief
Econom st

Tesoro Petrol eum Corporation (Tesoro)

San Antoni o, Texas

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 68.

KI P KNUDSON, Manager

External Affairs

Tesoro Al aska Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 68.

JEFF COCK, Director

External Affairs

Flint HIls Resources Alaska (Flint Hlls)

North Pol e, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered during the
di scussi on of HB 68.

PATRI CK GAMBLE, President; CEO

Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:24: 35 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 25, 2009



CHAIR KURT COLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:24 p.m Representatives Buch,
Chenault, Lynn, and O son were present at the call to order.
Representative Coghill arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 68- PRI CE GOUG NG | NVOLVI NG ENERGY RESOURCES

3:24: 57 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced the only order of business would be HOUSE
BILL NO 68, "An Act naking sales of and offers to sell certain
energy resources by a refiner at prices that are exorbitant or
excessive an unlawful act or practice under the Al aska Unfair
Trade Practices and Consunmer Protection Act."

3:25: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETE PETERSEN, Al aska State Legislature, stated
he introduced the bill because so many of his constituents
conpl ai ned about high gasoline prices. Wiile the Attorney
Ceneral’'s office investigated the matter, he related that it is
yet unresol ved. He opined fuel costs have had a devastating
effect on individuals, businesses, and conmunities. This bill
woul d restrict a refiner from selling or offering to sell fuel
at exorbitant or excessive costs. The bill would consider such
practices as an unfair trade practice and would establish strict
penalties as a deterrent. Additionally, the bill would shift
the burden of proof from the seller to the refiner. He
enphasi zed the biggest msconception is that the bill sets

prices, but it does not.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN pointed out that the ten percent
threshold in the bill creates a triggering nechani sm Prices
would still be legal above the ten percent so long as the
refiners could prove the product price was not an exorbitant
profit. Under <current statutes, the attorney general nust
determine that collusion or price fixing exists in order to
prosecute. This bill would provide the attorney general with an
additional tool. Hi storically, Alaska's gas prices have been
close to Wst Coast prices. However, |ast year Alaska s gas
prices were dramatically higher than any place in the country.
He opined the disparity exists today. Last year, the
| egi sl ature suspended the state’'s gas tax. Still, Alaska s gas
prices remain higher than any place in the Lower 48. He
referred to a handout in nenbers’ packets |abeled “Dist. by Rep.
Petersen” from AAA and APl.org sources that |I|ists gasoline

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 25, 2009



prices by state without state gasoline taxes included in the
price, listing Alaska’s price as the highest per gallon price at
$2.52 per gallon. He pointed out that states w thout any oi

i ndustry have | ower gasoline prices than Al aska. Yet, Alaska is
one of the major oil producers in the U S

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN expl ained that high fuel prices affect
the prices of npbst goods due to the shipping costs. He opi ned
that is one reason Anchorage had a 4.6 percent inflation rate

| ast year. Rising fuel costs are especially hard on snal

busi nesses since rising fuel costs increase their expenses while
decreasing customer demand. Some busi nesses have expressed
concern that high fuel costs will cause them to scale back or
even cl ose. Separate investigations by the attorney general’s
of fice, Legislative Research, and the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee have all shown high prices are the result of

abnormally high margins charged by Alaska’'s two oil refineries
He called attention to a graph on page 12 of the Legislative

Research report Nunber 09.053 dated Decenber 18, 2008. He
interpreted that the graph clearly shows that even as crude oi
prices fell, the margins charged by the refiners increased

di sproportionately to margins charged by Lower 48 refiners. He
expl ained that currently HB 68 would only apply to refineries.
However, after hearing from Alaska residents from all parts of
the state, he suggested the commttee consider adopting an
amendnment to include wholesale distributers and retailers to
those affected by the bill.

3:29:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated he has heard from many rural
Al askans expressing concern about the inpacts of high fuel
prices since often the comunity has one fuel source so
conpetition does not affect their fuel costs. He opined that
high prices continue to hurt Al askans and Al askan busi nesses.
Since fuel prices typically rise during the sunmer, he expressed
concern that prices could continue to rise. He said, “Under the
Al aska Constitution, we as legislators have a duty to ensure
that Al aska's resources are used to the maxi num benefit of the
Al askan people.” He offered his belief that charging higher
prices for Alaska s petroleum products than in the Lower 48,
nmeets the “maxi num benefit” test. He urged the commttee to act
qui ckly adopt the amendnment, and nove HB 68 to the next
commttee of referral so Alaska s businesses and famlies do not
need to wait another year for |ower fuel prices.

3:30: 46 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 25, 2009



DAVID DUNSMORE, Staff, Representative Pete Petersen, Al aska
State Legislature offered to provide answers to issues and
argunments that have been raised about the bill since its
i ntroducti on. He explained that sone people have a
phi | osophi cal objection to governnent intervention in conmmrerce.
However, this bill would add to the list of 55 itens that the
state has deenmed as unfair trade practices. He related that
Hawaii had a law to address pricing, but its nechanism was
substantially different than the one in HB 68. He el aborated
that Hawaii had a commssion simlar to the Regulatory
Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA) that capped fuel prices. This bill
prohibits exorbitant prices and establishes an objective
threshold, with a burden of proof shifted to the seller to

denonstrate the prices are justified by their expenses. Si nce
some discussion has arisen with respect to the Hawaii law, a
handout in nenbers’ packets titled Hawaii Fuels Study shows the
effect of the Hawaii |aw on gas prices. He explained that the
Hawaii |aw only regul ated gasoline prices but not diesel prices.

He described the handout briefly and indicated the study had the
unfortunate timng of being inplenented inmmediately after
Hurricane Katrina so the prices were uncharacteristically high.

3:33:48 PM

MR. DUNSMORE explained that pink and blue lines on the graph
represent prices in Honolulu and statewide prices in Hawaili,
which are not regulated by |egislation. Addi tionally, Hawaii
did not experience reductions in diesel fuel that they did with

gasol i ne. He enphasized that this bill is fundanentally
different than the Hawaii bill. The Hawaii commttee set prices
while HB 68 would establish that it would be an unfair trade
practice to charge excessive or exorbitant prices. The bill
woul d use a threshold rather than a cap on pricing. Thus, the
burden of proof will shift to the sellers.

3:35:31 PM

MR. DUNSMORE nentioned that Washington State was selected for
conparison since Al aska and Washington have traditionally been
linked comrercially. Additionally, he pointed out WAshington
does have a conpetitive refinery market and Al aska does not. He
opined the idea was to select a place in the Pacific Northwest.

He nmentioned that sone people suggested prices wll sinply
decline with the price of crude oil, but thus far that has not
been the case. He recalled the earlier handout of retail prices
by state, not including state gasoline taxes. He opined that

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 25, 2009



Al aska is radically higher than any state in the U S at $2.52.
He added that nost of the crude oil is Al aska North Sl ope (ANS)

crude oil or Cook Inlet crude oil. He highlighted that the bil
is designed to protect consuners from excessive gas prices and
is not intended to criticize Al askan refiners. He also

mentioned Al askan for profit corporations have a fiduciary duty
to make the profits that they can within the bounds of the |aw
He stated the point of HB 68 is to establish boundaries such
t hat excessive or exorbitant prices are prohibited.

3:37:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whether that would be price fixing if
the refiners are required to set the price within certain
l[imts.

MR. DUNSMORE answered that the |anguage prohibits excessive or
exorbitant prices. He stated subsection (c) sets out it is
prima facie evidence that a price is exorbitant or excessive if
the price exceeds by nore than 10 percent the average whol esal e
price of conparable energy resource charged by refiners in the
state of Washington. Thus, the bill does not set price or a
cap, but an objective threshold. This subsection also allows a
refiner to rebut the presunption by proving evidence that the
anmount charged by the refiner was justified by reasonable costs
incurred by the refiner.

3:38: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how the bill defines excessive or
exor bi tant pricing.

MR. DUNSMORE offered his belief that the term was taken from an
| daho consuner protection |aw He related that it is a |lega
term

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked for the basis of det erm ni ng
excessi ve.

MR. DUNSMORE related his understanding that excessive would be
decided by a court of |aw However, the bill sponsor
specifically did not want to set prices since markets can
fluctuate. However, consunmers should have reasonable protection
from excessi ve charges.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that he still does not understand the
definition of exorbitant.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 25, 2009



3:40:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated that setting the limt at ten
percent above Washington's pricing was chosen since it has been

t he traditional price differenti al bet ween Al aska and
Washi ngt on. He nentioned that rarely have prices fluctuated
fromthe ten percent difference until recently. This bill sets

up a trigger nmechanism  Thus, any prices at the fuel punp that
are set at nore than ten percent of the consuner price index in
Washi ngton woul d be consi dered exorbitant prices.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN related his wunderstanding that gasoline
prices above ten percent woul d be consi dered exorbitant.

3:41: 56 PM

CHAIR OLSON referred to the Legislative Research Report 09 187
dated March 12, 2009. He advised nenbers that he asked the
agency for a conparison of prices between Anchorage and Seattle.
He stated that transportation costs are roughly 11 percent of
househol d expendi tures. He opined that food is 12.5 percent of
the nmonthly expenditures and utilities are about 10 percent. He
further opined that all three itens are related 10 percent
hi gher than in Anchorage. He inquired as to whether the other
items such as wutilities and grocery costs should also be
i ncl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN related that he did not |ook at
traditional prices for utilities, groceries, or housing.

CHAIR OLSON offered his belief that food prices in Al aska are
still significantly higher than in Washi ngton.

MR. DUNSMORE offered one difference is Alaska s Constitution
contains a provision that obligates it to use its resources to
the maxi mum benefit of Al askans. Thus, other consuner goods
listed would not be affected by the constitutional provision

Additionally, many of the itenms l|listed originate in Lower 48,

while nmuch of the gasoline is refined in Al aska. He nmentioned
that gasoline, heating oil, and diesel is known econonmically as
demand in Al aska because when fuel prices increase people have
few choices of items to elinmnate. People are still going to
need to heat their hones and while they <can |lower the
thernostat, but to a large extent wll need to absorb the

addi ti onal fuel costs.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 25, 2009



3:44: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked whether a chart shows the crude
oil prices for the tineframe of the chart.

MR. DUNSMORE offered to provide the chart.
3:44: 41 PM
CHAIR OLSON, in response to Representative Chenault, stated that

29 percent refers to household incone. He referred to page 2,
titled “Table 1: Cost of Living Index Conparison, Anchorage and

Seattle, 2008". He stated that conpared to the national
average, housing in Anchorage is set at 137.2 percent and
Seattle is set at 152.0 percent. Thus, housing is 14 or 15

percent |ess expensive in Anchorage than in Seattle. G oceries
are 142.7 percent in Anchorage and 117.3 percent in Seattle.

3:45:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT related that the Tesoro refinery is in
his district. He stated he takes the coments seriously. He
related that Alaska inports foreign crude oil to the Tesoro
facility. He recalled that about 30 percent of the crude oil at
the refinery was foreign crude oil. He stated that all the oi

products for Flint Hlls Resources originate from ANS crude oil
However, sonme fuel sources for regions such as Southeast Al aska
originate in Washington for SE Al aska. He offered his belief
that he could be m staken. He also believed that some fuel is
barged from Washington to other areas in rural Al aska. He
suggested that the refineries could provide nore details.

3:47: 00 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL agreed that this is a legitinate
guesti on. He offered that two refineries are in his district
and they provide 15 percent of the gasoline for Al aska. He
explained if the refineries did not also sell jet fuel to the
airports that gasoline for home heating would be higher. He
explained that in order to obtain econonmies of scale the
refinery needs the “flow through.” He inquired as to whether
t he sponsor considered the option “turning off the refinery and
importing oil.” He surmised that if the crude oil destined for
jet fuel was not refined in Alaska the price would be costly.
Additionally, he expressed concern that jet fuel mght not
available in Alaska if the refineries were not operational. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 25, 2009



inquired as to whether the sponsor considered the current
subsidy to honme fuel and gasoline prices.

3:48: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN recalled the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee report discussed jet fuel at |[|ength. He related his
understanding that a |arge percentage of fuel produced by the
refineries is jet fuel. He said that based on his business

experience that it would be an unusual business nodel to sell
the majority of the product at a very low margin and try to nmake
up for low costs by increasing the price on the products that

the business sells that are a |esser volune. He opined that
traditionally this is not the way businesses are nanaged. He
related that his goal is not to shut down the state's

refineries, but to determine why prices have gone up and have
not gone down in conparison to crude oil prices. He stated that
traditionally the lines on the graph would nove in conjunction

wi th one another. Last year gas prices at the punp and the
price of crude oil seened to be disconnected, with a |arger gap
bet ween them than nornal. He acknow edged the situation could

be uni que. He reiterated that he would like to know the reason
for the significant gap.

3:50:44 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL related that he has the sanme question.
He recalled the business nodel in the gasoline report, noting
that sonetines stores such as Safeway sell gas at a loss to
attract people to the store to buy groceries. Thus, he
confirmed the business nodel can sonetinmes work that way. He
related his understanding that the fuel commodity is sold to two
di fferent markets. He related he is nore synpathetic to the
pricing than sone people since he conpares the cost to what it
woul d cost to ship the fuel to Al aska. He comrented that since
the Tesoro Refinery produces 85 percent of the gasoline, the

Interior may feel “chaffed”. He pointed out that the Interior
is using costly fuel from the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System
(TAPS) to refine their fuel. Thus, the two refineries have a

different price nodel than refineries that have the opportunity
to use natural gas in the refinery process. He stated he woul d
not be surprised wth the whole market dynam c of using nore gas
demand than diesel. He pointed out that in Interior Al aska the
refineries strive to nmake just the right anount of gasoline to
keep the contracts viable. He suggested that the lag tracks the
price per barrel of oil from the TAPS line and the lag for
contracts and subsequent products. He remarked that fuel prices

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 25, 2009



declined, but perhaps not as fast as he would have |iked. He
expl ai ned his own observations convinced him that price-gouging
was not the case. He inquired as to whether 10 percent is the
right nunber to set. He further inquired as to whether the
nunber should be increased to allow for legitimte market I|ag

He suggested he would rather increase the index to provide nore
assurance. He opined that 10 percent is too close to the market
price to be considered exorbitant.

3:53: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH related his understanding that jet fuel is
priced gl obally. He asked for clarification since the price is
established in a gl obal nmarket.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN recalled that jet fuel prices were being
kept low in order to help prevent it from being shipped in from
the Lower 48. He opined that shipping costs for a barge |oad of
jet fuel would add 10 to 20 cents to the fuel cost. He said he
is trying to understand why jet fuel pricing works the way it
does in Alaska since Alaska is isolated. He highlighted that
Al aska has substantial demand from conpani es such as Fed-Ex. He
related his understanding that normally high demand causes the
price to increase. He recalled that the Interior refineries
produce 60 percent of the jet fuel with small profit margins.
He opined that passing the cost to consumers on other products
such as gasoline does not make sense. He recalled that grocery
stores offer incentives to custoners who buy gasoline, but their
primary product is not gasoline. Thus, the discount is small
conpared to the overall grocery products the stores wll sell.

3:57:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN referred to the proposed Section 2, to
“Sales of certain energy resources by Alaska refiners.” He
recall ed that substantial amounts of fuel purchased in Southeast
Al aska and rural Alaska is from Washington and is not refined in
Al aska. He inquired as to how the nechanism would work to
determ ne “price-gouging.”

REPRESENTATI VE = PETERSEN recalled that the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Energy discussed this when the commttee held an

overview on the Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska. He related
that he did not include the RCA in the bill since the Departnent
of Law conducted an investigation on fuel costs. However, he

also recalled the RCA nentioned that it was within its purview
to look at fuel prices and nonopolistic prices in rural and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 25, 2009



Western Al aska. He suggested that he could ask the RCA to
revi ew.

3:59: 03 PM

REPRESENTATIVE NEUVMAN related his understanding that RCA
regulates utility conpanies not gasoline producers or refiners.
He inquired as to the structure that would be used to consider
transportation costs when gasoline is refined in Seattle and
shi pped to rural Al aska. He further inquired as to who would
deci de the profit-nmaking scale.

4:00:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated that he requested an anmendnment to
the bill to include distributors. He recalled testinony during
a trip to Western Al aska that indicated prices were higher than
reasonabl e, even when they factored in transportation costs. He

offered that one conpany will provide fuel to an area, creating
nmonopolistic situations in rural Al aska. He enphasi zed that
residents feel the price is exorbitant, which is why he is
willing to consider anmending the bill to include distributors.
4:01:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN stated he still is interested in

understanding the type of system or structure that would be set
up to review the costs.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN responded that the triggering mechani sm
is 10 percent above the Wshington i ndex. He recalled
Representative Coghill nentioned that 10 percent mght be too
| ow and had suggested setting it at 15 percent. He offered to
exam ne the percentage. However, he offered his belief that
some triggering mnmechanism should be in place to cause an
investigation to take place. O herwi se, he opined that prices
could spin out of control

4:03: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN nmaintained his interest in know ng what
structure would be in place to determne price gouging. He
related his understanding that to consider prices between
Seattle and various points in Alaska wuld lead to nultiple
mechani sns. He stated that he did not see a structured
mechanismin place to do so. He asked if it would be left up to
the courts to decide.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 25, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN answered that the attorney general’s
office would investigate any conplaints. However, he opined
that for some parts of the state, the RCA would be nore
appropriate due to nonopolistic conditions in rural Al aska. He
offered his belief that in those instances, the conpany coul d be
considered a utility.

4:04: 20 PM

CHAIR OLSON nentioned that Ed Sniffen, Departnent of Law,
normal Iy handl es these issues, but had a pressing engagenent in
Washi ngton DC. He offered to try to have him available for
guestions at the next hearing.

4:04: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN recalled that the attorney general’s office
investigated this matter.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN reiterated that the attorney general’s
office performed an investigation to determ ne whether there was
col | usi on. He explained collusion such as if conpanies got
together and made a coordinated plan. He opined that it is
difficult to prove collusion

4:05:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what would cause a price to be
exor bi tant or unusual .

MR. DUNSMORE explained the attorney general’s report concluded
that nothing illegal transpired under current law since a |aw
prohibiting exorbitant prices did not exist. However, the
attorney general’s report concluded that Al aska does not have a
conpetitive refinery market, but an oligopoly, which is where
several large firns control the market. Wthout a conpetitive
market to regulate prices, such as the Washington state nmarket,
this bill would prohibit excessive prices that could arise due
to a non-conpetitive market. Ordinarily, conpetition causes a
downward pressure on prices. Furthernore, for nost goods in
Al aska conpetitive pressure exists, but not for refined
petrol eum products in Al aska

4:07:37 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 25, 2009



MR. DUNSMORE, in response to Representative Lynn, stated that
the attorney general’s office investigated fuel costs under
current Al aska |aw. The attorney general would not have
reviewed price gouging since it is not currently considered as
an illegal activity.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL reiterated the attorney general’s office
advi sed the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee that Al aska does
not have a price-gouging |aw Thus, collusion was only issue
the attorney general could investigate. However, the attorney
general’s report indicated a price gouging law is usually event
driven, such as by Hurricane Katrina. He related his
understanding that this bill attenpts to even costs out by
considering the lack of conpetition in Alaska as though it were
an event. Therefore, Al aska needs to index costs to another
state such as Washington to provide reasonable costs. He said
he was not sure if he agreed with this but offered his summary
of the intent of HB 68.

4:09: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN pointed out that nothing in the bil
addresses specific events or a catastrophe.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked who initiated the attorney general’s
investigation that led to the report.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT recalled the governor had requested the
i nvestigation.

4:10: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated that many consuners believe the
fuel prices represent a catastrophe, especially in many parts of

Al aska. Furthernore, fuel costs are a problem from the
consuner’s point of view He indicated that he introduced the
bill to address legitimate conplaints from Al askans who are

entitled to some neasure of protection. He reiterated that the
threshold is set at 10 percent, but the commttee could consider
anot her percentage.

4:11: 37 PM
BOB WEINSTEIN, Myor, Cty of Ketchikan, stated that he would
speak in support of the concept of the bill. He related that a

consi derabl e nunmber of people expressed concern |ast Novenber
and Decenber about what appeared to be an unusually high

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 25, 2009



di sparity between gasoline and fuel oil prices in Ketchikan as
conpared to prices in the Lower 48. He opined that the issue
was the topic of angry letters to the newspaper and nedia, as
well as to |egislators. Finally, the concern becane so great
that people picketed and protested the high prices. He
expl ai ned that prices dropped “at the punp” by $1 to $1.40 per
gal | on. He offered his belief that the causes of possible
exorbitant pricing may be different in Ketchikan than in other
parts of Alaska, the concerns are simlar. He further opined
that HB 68 would do at |east two things. First, it would give
the attorney general a new tool to protect Al aska consunmers in
the event a refiner does charge excessive prices. Second, the
very fact that the tool exists mght in and of itself deter a
refiner fromselling energy resources at excessive or exorbitant
prices.

4:14: 00 PM

MR. VEINSTEIN, in response to Representative Chenault, stated
that the fuel in Ketchikan is barged in from Seattle.

4:14:31 PM

CARCLI NE POVWELL, Omner, Mllotts Ceneral Store, Inc. stated that
she and her husband have been the owners/operators of a store in
Yakutat for over 40 years. She explained that their electric
bill has generally been about $4,000 per nonth, but swelled to
$17,000 one nonth due to high fuel surcharges. She highlighted
the average increase in the surcharge alone is $200 per day, or
$6, 000 per nonth, or $72,000 per year. She said:

W won’'t be able to survive at these rates. The
community has no purchasing dollars left after paying
fuel surcharges on their power bills, plus the high

cost of hone heating fuel. The surcharge on a
residential electric bill of $270 is $400, nmaking it
over $600 total. One hundred gallons of hone heating

fuel cost over $500.

M5. POWNELL opined that if Mllotts General Store has to close
the effects on Yakutat would evolve into greater | osses,
including losses to their enployees and famlies, to custoners,
and reductions of sales taxes to the Cty and Borough of

Yakut at . She explained sonme ramfications such as that the
| ocal fishing fleets would not be able to fish. She pointed out
that gas cost $5 per gallon. She recalled that recently a

hal i but boat delivered his catch, but after the skipper paid

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 25, 2009



fuel bill he said he would not be returning. She opined that

others would also not return. She highlighted that Delta
Western Bulk Fuel (Delta Western) is the only distributor. | t
bought fuel in Yakutat when prices were the highest. She
offered that there is not any conpetition. She described a
scenario in which a distributor sells $2 fuel at 10 percent
profit would receive $.20 profit. If it sells $5 fuel at the

same profit, the distributor would make $.50 or $.30 nore.
Delta Western is the only fuel conpany so it has a nonopoly.
She offered her belief that the state has an obligation to
protect consuners from nonopolies. She recalled that the nmayor
advised the distributor informing them that the Yakutat Power
Conmpany could bring in cheaper fuel from Seattle. The response
was that it would take the community |longer to buy up the higher
cost fuel if Yakutat Power Conpany does not help purchase the

fuel. She also recalled that the Yakutat Power Conpany did
bring in fuel from Seattle several tines. However, this week
the barge was cancelled due to weather. Thus, Yakutat Power

Company is forced to purchase fuel from Delta Wstern again.
Furthernore, Delta Wstern increased the cost to Yakutat Power
Conmpany by $.30 per gallon advising the conmpany it is no |onger
on its preferred custonmer list or entitled to the utility rate.
Therefore, electric rates wll rise, she stated. She said,
“Yakut at needs sone relief. And I thank you for the opportunity
to speak.”

4:17:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH thanked Ms. Powell for her testinony. He
inquired as to the source of the fuel under nor mal
ci rcunst ances.

M5. POWNELL stated she was not certain. She opined that the fuel
costs are |lower when the fuel is barged in on Al aska Marine
Li nes from Washi ngt on. She said, “Delta Western has basically
said they won't be dealing with anyone who does this.”

4:18: 55 PM

LYNN WESTFALL, Senior Vice-President, External Affairs and Chief
Econom st, Tesoro Petroleum Corporation (Tesoro), introduced
hi msel f.

KI P KNUDSON, Manager, External Affairs, Tesoro Al aska Conpany,
i ntroduced hinself to nmenbers.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 25, 2009



MR. WESTFALL stated that Tesoro is an independent refiner, which

nmeans it does not own any crude oil. Tesoro purchases its
product on the free market from third parties. He al so stated
that Tesoro does not necessarily make its profit from high gas
prices. He said, “We make profit on the difference in price
bet ween gasoline and the other products we sell and the price we
have to pay for crude oil.” Last year when the headlines were
filled with news about the large profits being made in the oil
conpani es: those were from profits being nmade by crude
producers. Last year was one of the worst years for

profitability in history for the refining business. And the
outl ook for the refining business as a whole is continuing to
deteriorate. Last year, gasoline demand in the United States
declined by 3.5 percent, which was its second worse decline
since 1965. Jet fuel denmand is down over 10 percent, a |arger
decline than we saw in the aftermath of the 9/11 incident. U S
refineries are only running at about 80 percent capacity versus

a historical average in the 90s. But oversees refineries
continue to be built. Last nonth, one of the largest refineries
in the world started up in India. That refinery alone can
provi de enough gasoline to fill 40 percent of the US.'s
requirenents for inports. The Chinese are building between 4
and 5 refineries per year, sone of which will be dedicated for
the export market. Many refineries are in the planning stage in

the Mddle East. He opined the final word that can be said on
the state of the industry can be had sinply by |ooking at
Tesoro’s stock price. A little over a year ago, the stock at
Tesoro was about $60 a share, about a nmonth and a half ago it
went down to $6, and it has only recovered to about $15.

4:22:22 PM

MR. WESTFALL opined the industry is not healthy or earning high
profits. However, he pointed out that refining is the industry
he has chosen and will continue to be in so long as the industry
knows the risks it operates within. He explained that with its
system of seven refineries, the N kiski refinery is core to
their operations. He highlighted that it the only refinery in
the state to invest in technologies to produce ultra | ow sul phur
di esel fuel. He offered the investnent was approximately $65
mllion. He related that to be certain the product “had a hone”
and all markets were served, Tesoro entered into a unique
mar keting arrangenent with Flint Hlls Resources to purchase a
| arge portion of its product to sell to their custoners. He
menti oned another significant capital project of simlar size
will be to renobve benzene content in gasoline. However, Tesoro
could face a new risk, which is the bill before nenbers today.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 25, 2009



MR. WESTFALL stated HB 68 attenpts to stop a perceived practice
of price gouging by instituting a cap on the price of gasoline
and ot her petroleum products. Not only do these requirenents
not work where they have been tried, but the have an opposite
effect. He highlighted a scenario in which price controls were
established in the 70s in Texas, with long gas |lines, and even
or odd filling days, depending on the license plate nunber. He
opined every study conducted during the 1970s tine frame
concluded that the shortage was caused by price controls and not
by the oil enbargo. He explained that Hawaii attenpted to
institute price caps on gasoline. Shortly after the price caps
were instituted, a hurricane in the @lf Coast nade the Culf
Coast gasoline prices go fromthe lowest in the world to being
one of the highest. However, since Hawaii placed a cap on
prices gasoline prices could not increase enough to conpete for
[imted volunes of gasoline that was available. The result was
that “gasoline left the state of Hawaii.” He said:

So you can control the price, but if you do it at a
| evel that can’'t conpete with the rest of the world,
we have an obligation for our corporation to send it
to another market. The Hawaii regulation is now in
abeyance and as you know is not being enforced. Price
caps don’'t work because you can’t outguess or forecast
t he market. It is a world market for crude. It’s a
world market for petroleum products. And a piece of
| egislation can’'t conpete with a daily decision making
process of mllions of consunmers world wi de. And just
as price caps don’t work; neither do vague terns |ike
exor bi tant or excessive.

| think one of the basis tenets of our |egal systemis
that we have to have enough clarity in our laws that
sonmeone knows ahead of time that a contenplated action

is illegal so he can change his behavior before
breaking the law. Having governnent officials tell us
after the fact that our actions were illegal because
the law is vague is a very great risk to ask us to
bear .

In conclusion, | need to say the Tesoro Corporation
has and would like to continue investing their assets
in the State of Al aska. But since we have |imted

capital, and we have to choose the best places to use
that resource, we have to consider business risks.
And the bill before you today would add a new risk to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 25, 2009



our deci sion-naki ng process. Thank you very nuch for
your time. And | expect |I'Il get a question or two.

4:25:47 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked if this bill had been enacted a year ago,
whet her Tesoro woul d be in business at the current tine.

MR, WESTFALL answered yes. He stated he did not nmean to inply
that there would be an immediate effect to the bill. However,
the effect will be in Tesoro' s long-term investnment decisions.
He explained that had the bill been in effect at the tine Tesoro
decided to invest the $65 mllion to nmake ultra-low sul phur
diesel fuel; it would have been a factor. He acknow edged t hat
he cannot go back in history and re-nake the decision. However,
he offered his belief that it would have been a factor.

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to the current source of Tesoro’'s oil.

MR, WESTFALL related that generally about 50 percent is Al aska
North Slope (ANS) crude oil and 25 percent is Cook Inlet crude
oil, and the remaining 25 percent is purchased worl dw de. He
al so nentioned that Tesoro buys all of Cook Inlet’s crude oil.
In response to CHAIR OLSON, M. Westfall reiterated that 25
percent is Cook Inlet crude oil.

4:26:57 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL related his wunderstanding that Tesoro
buys refined fuel at market price. Thus, Tesoro has a good idea
about its fixed cost, but not the cost of the crude for
refining, what the market wll bear, and how regulators wll
affect them He inquired as to whether instead of considering
price gouging by the refinery, if the legislature should be
exam ni ng upstream since those prices would affect the refiners,
consuners, and everyone. He further inquired as to whether that
has been consi dered.

MR. WESTFALL recalled that in the initial stages of the Hawaili
| aw, the government considered retail instead of whol esale, but
decided that would hurt smaller businessnen. Thus, Hawai i
targeted retail prices. He said:

| think overall, it has the sanme chilling affect.
Eventually each chain in the supply chain has to nake
a reasonable profit. If you try to limt any chain,

you' re going to danage that part, be it the whol esale

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 25, 2009



chain, the retail chain, or the refining chain. So |
don't think by noving the point of enforcenent
significantly changes what the inpact of the bil
woul d have been or woul d be.

4:28:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL stated the problem is when soneone is
taking advantage of a “run up” sone conpanies nmake the nost

profit. He opined that one of the things the Congress was
attenpting to do was to level out the profits of those oi

producers with huge w ndfall profits. He recalled the Congress
brought major producers before it to ask questions. He further
recalled that Hurricane Katrina spurred the investigation. He
related his understanding since price gouging is usually event
driven that seened like a reasonable starting point. Based on

M. Wstfall’'s testinony, the fixed costs would be plant
managemnment, hardware, cost of fuel wused during the refining
process. Thus, the crude oil purchase price is the issue, he
opi ned. He asked if the comnmttee is “barking up the wong
tree” or is the market so conplex that an index point cannot be
f ound.

MR WESTFALL sai d:

The answer to your question, | believe, is that |
would love to tell you we are a cost plus business,
where you can take the cost of “crude” add in our
funding manager’s salary, adding 10 percent and that
is or should be the price of gasoline. Unfortunately,
the crude oil market has its own supply and demand

factors worl dw de. For instance, it certainly wasn't
U S. demand that drove the price up to $140 per
barrel . That was Chi nese demand. Gasoline has its

own supply and denmand characteristics, either at the
international level or even down to the store across
the street |evel. And they nove in different
di rections. So there really is no tie between, at
“this crude price” gasoline should be at “this price.”
So, as | say, they're really different, but both are
gl obal supply and denmand factors that you have to
account for. And you can’t, | can’'t tell you today,
|’m certainly not smart enough, what the relationship
between any two markets should be tonorrow Peopl e
have tal ked about Pacific Northwest, |ooking back in
hi story. | don’t know what that relationship wll be
next year. Washington state is out of conpliance with

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 25, 2009



federal ozone standards and they’'re going to have to
come up with a conpliance plan and part of that plan
may be instituting California grade gasoline, which is
a whole different animal when it cones to gasoline.
If they do that you can take your historical charts

and throw them away. The relationship will change
But | guess ny point is, “I don't know next year what
any of those relations are going to be.” And to
assune a cap or reqgulate it is sonething that | don't

have the brains to tell you what it ought to be.
4:31: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that it would be helpful to know
how many other refineries Tesoro conpetes with that service the
Washi ngton market. He also asked how the Tesoro refinery
decides the cost of diesel and gasoline based the varying
vol unes of diesel and gasoli ne.

MR. WESTFALL answered, wth respect to overall conpetition in
refining, that Tesoro has refineries in Alaska, Hawaii, two in
northern California. He recalled 13 refineries in CA four in
Washi ngton, two in Hawaii, and those in Al aska. He pointed out
that when a conpany has a refinery in one l|ocation, it can
conpete with many others. For exanple, there is a pipeline that
joins Salt Lake City to Eastern Washington State. Thus, part of
the supply originates in Ut ah. A pipeline from EIl Paso, Texas
connects to Arizona, and one from Arizona to California, which
connects those two narkets. He related it is difficult to draw
a supply corridor that is narrow Furthernore, once product is
placed in a tank, as is done in Al aska, the product can be
shi pped anywhere in the world. He opined that he just described
the conpetition just in the Pacific Northwest area.

4:33:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL related that he is interested in the
mar ket dynamic in order to be able to gauge excessive or
exorbitant prices. He also indicated he would like to determ ne
how simlar the market is in Washington in order to assess the
10 percent index. He nmentioned that the “price at the punmp” is
what is viewed, but the distribution system and consunption
rates would likely be different.

MR. WESTFALL offered his belief that every market is a unique

mar ket . Certainly, Alaska is smaller and is geographically
di verse. He opined that he could not find another nmarket

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 25, 2009



simlar to Al aska except Hawaili . However, Hawaii has its own
characteristics such that it does not have any crude oil or
nat ural gas.

4:34:32 PM

CHAIR OLSON related his understanding that Tesoro is buying 25
percent of its crude oil for Al aska on the spot market. He
asked how far out purchases are nade.

MR. WESTFALL answered that it would depend. He stated that in
South Anerica it ranges from 30 to 45 days, but in the Mddle
East it can be up to 90 days. In further response to Chair
A son, M. Wstfall stated the crude oil that is arriving in
Al aska today was purchased at sone other price.

4: 35: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked for the market of N kiski plan
product s.

MR.  WESTFALL related that approxinmately 60 percent of its
gasoline is sent to other refiners. He related that the
nol ecul es purchased at Alaska's gas stations originated at
Tesoro’ s refinery. Additionally, besides its own brand, Tesoro
sells to wholesalers wth their own brand, and to the

i ndependent gasoline stations. He stated that diesel goes to
another refiner, Flint Hlls Resources Alaska, and to whol esal e
and bulk fuel facilities. He further stated that jet fuel is
destined to the airport. Furthernore, he nentioned about 30
percent of Tesoro’s product is heavy oil, which is exported at a

| oss. He offered to provide nore detail to the commttee.
4:37:16 PM

MR. WESTFALL, in response to Representative Buch, stated that it
does not export Tesoro's products to other parts of the world.
He clarified that the “bottom of the barrel” is destined to Far
East markets.

4:37:32 PM

JEFF COOK, Director, External Affairs, Flint Hlls Resources
Alaska (Flint HIls), expressed his concern with HB 68. He
opined that HB 68 would adversely affect the Flint Hlls
refinery, harm consuners, and have long term negative effects
for Al askans. He provided the Flint HIlls refinery' s history.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 25, 2009



He stated that Flint Hlls is not in the crude oil production
busi ness nor does it have retail gasoline stations. Al of its

products are sold on whol esale narket. Flint HIls produces
| ess than one-fifth of the gasoline used in Al aska and only one-
third of the heating fuel used in the Fairbanks area. Its 175
enpl oyees are proud of their contributions to Al aska. He
pointed out that Flint Hills recently won awards and recognition
and is an efficient and safe refinery. Flint HIlls Resources
has nore than 60 years experience in the refining business. | t

has owned and operated the North Pole refinery since 2004. The
conpany also owns and operates refineries in Mnnesota and
Texas. He explained that the North Pole refinery began
operating in 1977, shortly after the Trans-Al aska Pipeline
System was conpl et ed. The facility has undergone nodifications
but its basic configuration has remained unchanged. The
refinery is a topping plant, which neans it lacks the
sophi sticated processing capability to refine all the incom ng
crude oil into finished products.

MR, COOK indicated that the North Pole plant receives 180,000 to
220,000 barrels of crude oil per day, heats the crude oil to
distill it into a few products for resale, and the rest of the
stream is returned to TAPS, and Flint Hlls pays an adjustnent
or penalty to do so. As a result, Flint Hlls currently retains
about 40,000 barrels per day of saleable product, the majority

of which is jet fuel. Additionally, Flint Hlls retains a
guantity of fuel as an energy source for its refinery operations
since it does not have access to natural gas. He opined that
many topping plants were in operation in 1977, but nost have
cl osed due to environnental em ssi ons regul ati ons and
increasingly stringent federal requirenents on the types of
fuel s produced. He offered his belief that the North Pole

refinery has kept pace with new environnmental regulations but
the changes in the types of fuels produced has inpacted the
anount of gasoline and diesel fuel that Flint Hlls can produce.
Federal mandates to | ower sul phur content in the |ast few years
have substantially dimnished its ability to produce the fuels.

Al though it produces sone gasoline and off-road diesel, it now
purchases gas and diesel to nmeet the full needs of its
cust oners. He further opined that is the reason that supplies

are tight and profit margins are very small.
4:41:17 PM
MR. COOK pointed out that Flint HIlls is working with the

Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to develop a better
understanding of its operations and the circunstances that

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 25, 2009



threatens its long-termviability in the state. Even though the
refinery has been recently profitable, that is not currently the
case. He related that Flint HIlls is facing substantial
uncertainty and is in the process of exploring its options.
Thus, HB 68 poses a serious threat to future of the refinery,
particularly since the bill does not establish a definition of
exorbitant or excessive prices, yet subjects refineries to
penalties that are 10 tines the anount of the econom c benefit

from unlawful sales or $50 mllion, whichever is greater. Thi s
bill would have an adverse affect on Al askan consuners and
busi nesses. He offered his belief that the bill would be so

oppressive to its business, that Flint Hills would be forced to
cease refining and distributing fuel in the state due to the
uncertainty of pricing and the burdensone penalties. No one
guestions consuners can and should seek the |owest cost fuels.
However, governnent intervention creates far nore harm than
good, he opined. He highlighted that producers react to price
controls or cap legislation in a nunber of ways and none are

good for consuners. He enphasized that a producer could shut
dowmn facilities or it may only produce the product when the
price makes a sale profitable. Additionally, price controls
affect investnent decisions. If the control price is not
sufficient to generate an acceptable rate of return, the
investnment will not occur. Conpeti ng producers observing the
market will only enter if they believe they can earn noney under

the control price.

MR. COXX stressed that all of this leads to shortages. A |ower
price is not of any use to a consuner if the fuel is not
avai |l abl e. He offered his belief that trying to outguess the
mar ket by setting a price cap that is thought to be adequate to
address these problens is a dangerous gane and one that Flint

HIlls will not engage in. He highlighted that none of us can
forecast the future wth any degree of accuracy and the
consequences of being wong will result in a shortage of fuel in

Al aska. He acknowl edged the sponsor’s intentions are good, but
he inplored the commttee to not to advance HB 68. He stressed
that the bill could shut down the Flint Hlls facility, but
could do greater harmto Al askans. He related his understanding
that high fuel costs are burdensonme for many Al askan famlies.
North Pole workers pay the sane prices for their gasoline and

heati ng fuels. However, price control legislation wll harm
consuners by causing shortages. The Flint Hlls refinery is
facing serious challenges wth the demand for jet fuel down
significantly in Al aska, particularly at the Anchorage

I nternational Airport. He highlighted that Federal Express is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 25, 2009



transferring 68 pilots from Anchorage. He respectfully
requested the conmttee not nove HB 68 fromcomm ttee.

4:44: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH recalled an article from the parent conpany,
Koch Industries, Inc. He recalled reading that when oil prices
are high the conpany could not “make any noney” but when the
price was low it could not earn profits. He stated he was
initially confused. He inquired as to whether sone nmargin
exists or certain price ranges that allows the conpany is nore
profitable.

MR. COOK cautioned that he is not an econom st. He stressed
that he is restricted from naking sone coments in a public
setting. However, he related that when prices were high the
conpany was challenged since it takes crude oil, refines it into
energy source to run the refinery, and did pay three tinmes the
average cost of other refineries to process crude oil. He
stated that besides crude oil, the cost of energy is the second

hi ghest cost the conpany i ncurs. He offered his belief that he
could not specifically answer the question due to his lack of
knowl edge and the | egal constraints.

4:46: 56 PM

PATRI CK GAMBLE, President and CEO, Al aska Railroad Corporation
(ARRC), stated that since 2004 he has held a close association
with Flint HIlls in his role as the president of the ARRC He
expl ained that the ARRC transports Flint Hill's products to the
airport. He further explained that he has currently been nore
involved with DNR and Flint Hills to examne all options to keep
the refinery open. He opined that this involvenent has enabl ed
him to assess the inpacts if the refinery was not there. He
enphasi zed that part of the process is to collectively work with
Flint HIlls and DNR to build a value chain for the state to
determine what is in the best interests of Alaska with respect
to the refining portion of the royalty oil, which belongs to all
Al askans. He stressed that building that wvalue chain is
different for the state than it is for a private corporation
such as Flint HIlls. He asked to comment on “the other side of
the coin”. He indicated that he has a clearer picture of the
consequences of not having the Flint Hills refinery. He opi ned
that it is sinply a business case, review ng one value chain and
conparing it to another, and presenting to the legislature the
factual data in terms of the viability of the Fint Hlls
refinery. However, “the other side of that coin” is the fall out

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 25, 2009



of that process. He stated that not having a refinery in
Interior Alaska would affect all Al askans. The ARRC depends on
Flint HIlls as its domnant custoner, and a long list of ARRC
custoners along the Railbelt in turn depend on the ARRC, such as
ports and conpanies extending as far as the North Slope in terns
of providing support for producers, gold mnes, and the
military. He highlighted that ARRC is part of the strategic
defense transportation system and is a defense connector |ine
that is ready to transport the mlitary within Al aska. He al so
menti oned several large projects are underway that could be
affected, such as the Fairbanks Bypass, the Northern Line
Ext ensi on and the Matanuska- Susitna extension. He opined that
the viability of the ARRC is inportant to all these custoners
and projects since it allows all these custoners to |look to the
railroad as a tool for econom c devel oprent.

4:52: 07 PM

MR. GAMBLE said “l am thoroughly convinced that HB 68 woul d be
al nost tantanmount to a heart shot in terns of the opportunity to
continue a reasonable dialogue with Flint Hlls, wth the
opportunity for a reasonable outcone, and the ability to | ook at
several reasonable options that would keep the refinery open.”
He offered his belief the inpact of HB 68 would be so egregious
as to render some options as not worthwhile. He further
enphasi zed his concern due to the inmpact on ARRC He expl ai ned
the ARRC estimates 600 jobs including the Flint Hlls refinery,
the ARRC, and others that the University of Al aska |SER study
i ndicated would al so be affected. He opined that 500 indirect
jobs would also be at stake. He offered his belief that w thout

the ARRC revenue, the business would also be affected. He
stressed that besides payroll, capital is also punped into the
econony. Thus, when considering the value chain to Al aska, al

of these itenms nust also be considered. He concluded that he

wanted to provide this perspective to the conmttee.
4:55: 07 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that HB 68 would be held over for further
consi derati on.

4:55:31 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- March 25, 2009



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:55 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- March 25, 2009



